IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

UNI TED STATES OF AVERI CA
v. : CRIM NAL No. 04- CR-543
ATEF HASAN | SMAI L | DAI' S

VEMORANDUM

Padova, J. June 27, 2005

Defendant is presently detai ned pending trial on Superseding
| ndi ct ment 04-543, which charges him wth one count of nmaking a
fal se statenent under oath on a visa application, in violation of
18 U.S.C. 88 1546(a) and 3238 (Count |), and one count of know ngly
using, attenpting to use, and possessing a visa which Defendant
knew was procured by neans of a fal se statenent, in violation of 18
US C 8§ 1546(a). Before the Court is Defendant’s “Forthwith
Motion for Release Pending Trial.” For the reasons which follow,
the Motion is denied.

l. BACKGROUND

Def endant has been detained since his initial appearance in
this Court on Indictnment 04-543 on Septenber 10, 2004, at which
time he stipulated to pretrial detention. Defendant’s pretria
detention was continued followi ng a hearing held on Septenber 15,
2004 before United States Magistrate Judge Charles B. Smth.
Def endant was arrai gned on t he Supersedi ng I ndi ct nent on Qct ober 7,
2004. A second detention hearing was schedul ed for October 13,

2004, before United States Magi strate Judge Linda K. Caracappa. At



the tinme set for the hearing, Defendant waived his right to a
hearing and stipulated to his pretrial detention. (Cct ober 13,
2004 Order.) Defendant, through counsel, has filed three notions
to continue the trial in this matter, which have been granted.
(Docket Nos. 27 - 29, 30, 33, 34, 40, 44.) Defendant is presently
scheduled to begin trial on Superseding Indictnment 04-543 on
Septenber 12, 2005. (Docket No. 44.) No other continuances have
been requested. Def endant has changed counsel tw ce during the
pendency of this proceeding and is currently represented by Robert
EE. H Mller, Esq., his third attorney. Def endant’ s second
attorney, Catherine T. Henry, Esq., filed a Mtion for Release
Pendi ng Trial on Defendant’s behalf on March 22, 2005. (Docket No.
39.) Defendant’s previous Mtion for Release Pending Trial was
denied foll owi ng a Heari ng held on March 29, 2005 because t he Court
found that “there is no condition or conbination of conditions
whi ch woul d reasonably assure the appearance of this defendant as
required.” (3/29/05 N.T. at 20.)

After Defendant’s Motion for Rel ease Pending Trial was deni ed,
and while he was still represented by M. Henry, Defendant
attenpted to change his plea to guilty, in the anticipation that
changing his plea would expedite his release from detention.
(Defendant’s letters dated 4/5/05 and 4/7/05, 4/13/05 N.T. at 8-
14.) A Change of Plea Hearing was held on April 13, 2005.

Def endant was placed under oath as the Hearing began. (4/13/05



N.T. at 4.) During the Hearing, Defendant denied that the copy of
the visa application offered by the Governnent was a copy of the
vi sa application which he conpleted. (l1d. at 35.) Defendant al so
denied that he made a false statement on his application for a
visa. (ld. at 38-39.) As Defendant denied, under oath, that he
made fal se statenents on his visa application, the Court was unabl e
to accept Defendant’s guilty plea to Superseding I ndi ct ment 04-543.
(Ld. at 40.) Defendant subsequently retained his present counsel.
M. Mller filed the instant Mdtion on Defendant’s behalf on My
27, 2005. The Governnent filed a response to the Motion on May 31,
2005 and a Hearing was held on June 8, 2005.

1. LEGAL STANDARD

This Court has jurisdiction to review a detention order of a
Magi strate Judge pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3145(b). Section 3145(b)
requires the Court to make a de novo determ nation of the findings

of fact underlying the detention order. United States v. Smth,

No. Crim A 04-680, 2004 W 2590500, at *1 (E.D. Pa. Cct. 29,
2004) (citing United States v. Del ker, 757 F.2d 1390, 1394 (3d Cir.

1985)). Section 3142(e) of the Bail Reform Act, 18 U S. C. 8§
3142(e), provides that: “If, after a hearing pursuant to the
provi sions of subsection (f), the judicial officer finds that no
condition or conbination of conditions wll reasonably assure the
appearance of the person as required and the safety of any other

person and the comrunity, he shall order the detention of the



person prior to trial.” 18 U S.C. 8 3142(e). The Bail Reform Act
requires the Court to consider four factors in determ ning whet her
there are “conditions of release that will reasonably assure the
appearance of [the Defendant] as required and the safety of any
ot her person and the community.” 18 U.S.C. § 3142(9). The
relevant factors are: 1) the nature and circunstances of the
of fenses charged in the Superseding Indictment; 2) the weight of
t he evi dence agai nst the Defendant; 3) the Defendant’s history and
characteristics, including his “character, physical and nental
condition, famly ties, enploynent, financial resources, |ength of
residence in the community, community ties, past conduct history
relating to drugs or alcohol abuse, crimnal history and record
concerni ng appearance at court proceedi ngs” and whether he was on
probation, parole or pretrial release at the tinme the instant
of fense occurred; and 4) the nature and seriousness of the danger
t hat woul d be posed to any person or to the comunity if Defendant
were released pending trial. Id. The Governnent’s burden of
establishing “risk of flight justifying pretrial detention is the
preponderance of the evidence standard. The Governnent’s burden in
denonstrating danger to the community justifying pretrial detention

is the clear and convincing standard.” Smth, 2004 W 2590500, at

*1 (citing United States v. Hmer, 797 F.2d. 156, 160, 161 (3d

Cir. 1986)).



111. DI SCUSSI ON

Havi ng considered the subm ssions of Defendant and the
Governnent, and the June 8, 2005 Hearing, the Court nakes the
foll owi ng findings of fact and reaches the fol |l owm ng concl usi ons of
law pursuant to 18 U. S.C. 8§ 3142(i).

A. The O fense and the Evidence in this Case

1. Def endant is presently detained pending trial on Superseding
I ndi ct ment 04-543, which charges himw th one count of making
a false statenent with respect to a material fact, under oath,
on a vi sa application, and know ngly presenting an application
for a non-immgrant visa containing a false statenent, in
violation of 18 U S.C. 88 1546(a) and 3238 (Count I), and one
count of knowi ngly using, attenpting to use, and possessing a
visa whi ch Defendant knew was procured by neans of a false
statenment, in violation of 18 U S.C. 8§ 1546(a). Superseding
I ndi ct ment 04-543 charges that Defendant’s visa application
states that Defendant

had never been arrested, charged or
convicted of any offense or crinme, and
was not a nenber of a terrorist
organi zation, when in fact as the
[ D] ef endant then and there well knew, he
had been arrested for an offense or
crime, charged and convicted of an
of fense or crinme, and had been a nenber
of Hamas, a terrorist organi zation on the
United States Departnent of State’'s List
of Desi gnat ed For ei gn Terrori st
Or gani zat i ons.



(Superseding Indictnment Count |1.) There is probable cause to
beli eve that Defendant has violated 18 U S.C. 88 1546(a) and
3238 as set forth in Superseding |Indictnment 04-543.

2. The evi dence agai nst Defendant, which has been submtted to
this Court in connection w th Defendant’s Motions for Pretri al
Rel ease, appears to be very strong. This evidence consists of
the subject visa application and a certified copy of the
records of Defendant’s arrest, prosecution and sentence, which
were obtained by the Governnment from the MIlitary Appeals
Court of Israel.* The records obtained fromlsrael show that
Def endant was arrested in 1999 for nenbership in an illegal
associ ation (Hamas), throw ng stones, and offenses conmtted
agai nst the public order. He was convicted and sentenced by
| sraeli authorities to 15 nonths inprisonnment, with all but
100 days suspended, and fi ned.

3. Def endant faces a maxi mum penalty of 10 years inprisonnent,
supervi sed rel ease, a fine, and a special assessnent for each
of Counts | and Il pursuant to 18 U. S.C. 88 1546(a), if he is
convicted of the crimes charged i n the Supersedi ng I ndi ct ment.

4. Def endant faces deportati on proceedi ngs because of a det ai ner
| odged against him by the United States Immgration and

Custonms Enforcenent (“ICE’) as a result of his prosecution

The Governnent has provided the Court wth an English
transl ation of these docunents.



10.

11.

pursuant to Superseding |ndictnent 04-543.

B. Characteristics of the Defendant and Ri sk of Flight

Def endant grew up on the West Bank and entered this country on
a student visa which was issued on or about July 25, 2000.
After arriving in this country, Defendant married Rrahema
GQurra, who Defendant states is a United States citizen.
Def endant and his wife have two small children who are United
States citizens. Defendant clains to own a hone in the City
of Phi |l adel phi a.

Def endant was arrested on an adm ni strative warrant for being
out of status on his student visa in January 2004 and det ai ned
in the York County Prison. He was |later released on bail by
an immgration judge on his out-of-status warrant.

Def endant was i ntervi ewed by special agents of the FBI both at
the York County Prison and at home after he was rel eased on
bai | . The FBI agents |earned from Defendant during those
interviews that he had been arrested in Israel.

Def endant faces the possibility that he will be deported from
this country if he is convicted.

Defendant’s in-laws are willing to put up their hone, whichis
| ocat ed i n Phil adel phi a, Pennsyl vani a and worth approxi mately
$75,000, to secure Defendant’s bail, if necessary.

Def endant cl ainms that he suffers fromfi bronyal gi a and st onmach

probl ens whi ch have not been appropriately treated during his



detenti on.

12. There is no evidence that Defendant was on probation, parole
or pretrial release for any other offense in the United States
at the time of the current offense.

13. There is evidence on the record of this Mtion that Defendant
was, at one tine, a nmenber of Hamas, which the Governnent has
desi gnated a Foreign Terrorist O ganization.

14. The Court recogni zes that Defendant did not flee while the FBI
was investigating the instant case and concludes that
Def endant has strong ties to the community and t he support of
his wife and in-I|aws. However, Defendant’s ties to the
comunity and the support of his famly do not outweigh
Defendant’s strong incentive to flee to avoid conviction in
this case, possi bl e additional i nprisonnment foll ow ng
conviction and the probability that he would be deported
followng his rel ease fromincarceration

15. The Governnent contends that Defendant could be deported
pursuant to the | CE detainer prior totrial inthis case if he
is released on bail by this Court and returned to the custody
of the ICE

V. CONCLUSI ON

For the foregoing reasons, the Court concludes that there is
a serious risk that Defendant would flee if he were rel eased on

bail by this Court and subsequently released on bail by an



immgration judge. The Court further concludes that there is a
possibility that Defendant could be deported prior to trial if he
were released on bail and returned to the custody of the |CE
Consequently, the Court finds that there is no condition or
conbination of conditions which wll reasonably assure the
appearance of Defendant as required.? Defendant’s “Forthwith
Motion for Release Pending Trial” is, therefore, denied.

An appropriate order foll ows.

2As the Court has found that there is no condition or
conbi nati on of conditions that will assure Defendant’s appearance,
the Court need not determ ne whether any condition or conbination
of conditions would assure the safety of any other person and the
comunity.



I N THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA

V.

CRI M NAL No. 04-CR-543

ATEF HASAN | SVMAI L | DAI' S

AND NOW this 27th day of June, 2005, upon consideration of

Def endant’s “Forthwith Mtion for Release Pending Trial” (Docket

No. 56), the Governnent’s response thereto, and the Hearing held on

June 8, 2005, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, for the reasons set forth in

the attached Menorandum as foll ows:

1

Said Motion is DEN ED on the ground that, pursuant to 18
US C § 3142(e) and (f), the Governnent has proven by a
preponderance of the evidence that no condition or
conbi nation of conditions wll reasonably assure the
appear ance of the Defendant.

Defendant is commtted to the custody of the Attorney
General for confinenent in a corrections facility
separate, to the extent practicable, from persons
awai ting or serving sentences or being held in custody
pendi ng appeal; that Defendant be afforded reasonable
opportunity for private consultation with counsel; and
that, on order of the Court of the United States or on
the request of an attorney for the United States, the
person in charge of the corrections facility in which the

Def endant is confined shall deliver the Defendant to a



Uni ted States Marshal for the purpose of an appearance in

connection wth court proceedings.

BY THE COURT:

[s/ John R Padova
John R Padova, J.




